
 

Board of Adjustment                                                                               March 13, 2014 

Township of Ocean Minutes 

                                                                                                                                             

CAUCUS SESSION:    7:15 P.M.    Municipal Building First Floor Conference Room 

Deal and Monmouth Roads  

Oakhurst 

 

DISCUSSION: Defonseka 

   Block 34.02 Lot 8 

 

 Planning Administrator Marianne Wilensky explained that the applicant previously 

received approvals for a fence and must provide a landscaping plan. Mr. Defonseka 

wants to plant a combination of arborvitaes and Leyland Cyprus along Poplar Road 

which would create a gap between the hedge and the fence. Mr. Schepiga said that 

as long as he keeps the sidewalk clear, he is okay with the proposed landscaping. The 

Board members unanimously agreed. 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING: 7:30 P.M. Public Meeting Room 

Deal and Monmouth Roads 

Oakhurst 

              

MEMBERS  

PRESENT: 

Maureen Bonney, Alt II 

Jane Grabelle 

Eric Menell 

John Napolitani, Alt III 

Henry Schepiga, V Ch 

Peter Siano, Alt IV 

Richard Van Wagner 

James Worrell, Alt I 

MEMBERS  

ABSENT: 

 

Russell Malta 

Warren Goode, Ch 

    

 

OTHERS PRESENT Mark A. Steinberg,  

James Higgins, P.P. 

William Fitzgerald, P.E. 

Marianne Wilensky,  

Rachel Goncharko, 

Zoning Board Attorney 

Board Planner 

Board Engineer 

Planning Administrator  

Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary 

   

Vice Chairman Henry Schepiga announced that the notice requirements for the 

Open Public Meetings Act have been satisfied, a copy of the notice was sent to the 

Asbury Park Press and the Coaster, posted in the Township Hall, and filed in the Office of 

the Township Clerk on March 6, 2014. 

 

CASES CARRIED TO April 10, 2014  

 

Nicole Shamah 

Block 16.01 Lot 5 

230 Lawrence Avenue 

Oakhurst 

Samantha Sasson 

Block 44 Lots, 3, 4 

200 Parker Avenue 

Deal Park 

Carol Gallina 

Block 35 Lot 77 

37 Northwoods Road 

Wayside 

   

 

Pinky Mahajan 

Block 33.23 Lot 5 

610 Carol Avenue 

Oakhurst 

  

   

APPLICATION WITHDRAWN 

 

Timothy Koukoumis 

Block 26.04 Lot 23 

395 Larkin Place 

Oakhurst 

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 2 

Township of Ocean                                                                                             March 13, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION MEMORIALIZATIONS 

 

Jenna DiDario 

Block 35 Lot 55 

16 Carbury Road 

Ocean 

Bulk Variance Approval 

MOVED: Bonney SECOND: Worrell 

FAVOR: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Worrell 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Schepiga (Disqualified), Siano,  

Van Wagner 

ABSENT: Malta, Goode  
 

Alexander T. LaSalle 

Block 31 Lot 28 

4 Orange Street 

Oakhurst 

Bulk Variance Approval 

MOVED: Bonney SECOND: Worrell 

FAVOR: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Worrell 

OPPOSED: None 

INELIGIBLE: Schepiga, Siano, Van Wagner 

ABSENT: Malta, Goode  
 

NEW CASES 

 

Isaac and Merar Hanon 

Block 12.06 Lot 12 

231 Lawrence Avenue 

Oakhurst 

Zone R-4 

This is an application to keep an accessory structure 

(table area) with a variance for side yard setback of 

0.5’ where 10’ is permitted. 

 

 

 

The Board’s information packet was marked B-1.  

 

Planning Administrator Marianne Wilensky read her report. 

 

The applicant, Isaac Hanon explained that he had already placed the 16”x16” 

pavers down for traction while playing ping pong. He said that he bought them from 

Home Depot and a handyman put them on the ground with nothing underneath. 

 

Vice Chairman Schepiga explained that the issue is that it is impervious area and 

is half a foot away from the property line. He said that there is no planning reason to 

allow it to stay and he suggested they move it elsewhere on the property. Merar Hanon 

said that there is no where else to put it.  

 

Mr. Hanon said that they are not over the impervious coverage. Ms. Wilensky 

explained that the character of the area would not be to have the whole building 

envelope covered except for the required setbacks.  

 

Mr. Schepiga suggested other locations, including the area between the shed 

and the pool.  

 

Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. said that this area is plagued with drainage 

problems and that it would be impractical for the Board to grant a variance for 

impervious coverage. He said that the pavers can be easily moved and suggested 

putting the ping pong table elsewhere.  

 

Board Member Peter Siano suggested moving the ping pong table onto the 

basketball court when they want to play as the table is portable. Mr. Hanon said that it 

would be difficult for the young children to move.  

 

Board Member Jane Grabelle suggested moving the shed. Mr. Hanon said that 

the shed is 7’x 7’ and that the area is not large enough for the pavers.  

 

Mr. Schepiga said that they must figure out a way to keep the pavers without 

requiring a variance. Board Attorney Mark Steinberg, Esquire said that had they applied 

for a permit before doing the work, the Zoning Officer would have told them they 

needed a variance.  Mr. Hanon said that the sales person told him that he could do it. 

 

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 3 

Township of Ocean                                                                                             March 13, 2014 

 

 Mr. Schepiga carried this application to April 10, 2014. 

 

CONTINUED CASES 

 

Howard Richmond 

Block 25.34 Lot 12 

439 Brookside Avenue 

Oakhurst 

Zone R-4 

This is an application to install a generator with a 

variance for construction in the flood plain. 

 

 

 

The Board’s information packet was marked B-1.  

 

Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. summarized his report, explaining that he 

has no engineering concerns with the application but that the generator will have to 

be elevated due to the flood hazard area.  

 

The applicant, Howard Richmond, said that due to health reasons, he would not 

be able to survive a power outage for more than 4 or 5 days. He said that his contractor 

can place the generator as high as it needs to be and that he will work with his surveyor 

to reflect that on the plans.  

 

A motion to close the public hearing was made by Jane Grabelle and seconded 

by James Worrell. 

 

In Favor: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Schepiga, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

 

A motion to approve the application was made by Jane Grabelle and seconded 

by Eric Menell. 

 

In Favor: Bonney, Grabelle, Menell, Napolitani, Schepiga, Van Wagner, Worrell 

Opposed:  None 

Ineligible:  Siano 

Absent: Malta, Goode 

 

To be memorialized on April 10, 2014. 

 

The Board took a break from 8:10 PM resuming at 8:15 PM. 

 

Board member Richard Van Wagner left at 8:15 PM. 

 

CONTINUED CASE   

 

CBS Outdoor, Inc. 

Block 215 Lot 3 

1021 Route 35 North 

Ocean 

Zone C-3 

 

This is an application for minor site plan approval 

with “d” and “c” variances.  

 

Attorney for the applicant: Reginald Jenkins, 

Esquire 

 

The Board’s information packet was marked B-2.  

 

Louis D’Arminio, Esquire represented the applicant. He gave a brief history of the 

application, referencing the transcript from the first hearing last May. He said that the 

applicant has had several meetings with the Board’s professionals since then. Mr. 

D’Arminio said that they will do the landscaping which was required by the Board in 

previous approvals. 

 

Board Planner James Higgins, P.P. summarized his report. He referred to a small 

strip of vacant land that is now known to be part of the subject site. Higgins said that 

the new signs will be smaller which is an improvement and recommended that no 

larger signs be installed. Mr. Higgins recommended that a landscaping plan including  



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 4 

Township of Ocean                                                                                             March 13, 2014 

 

the vacant strip of land be submitted within 45 days of approval and be installed no 

later than 30 days of a letter of approval. Mr. Higgins also noted that the applicant had 

previously received approvals for a C2 variance to allow the billboard to change every 

8 seconds. Now there is a new sign ordinance which allows no moving parts and the 

applicant is expanding a pre-existing non-conforming use.  

 

Board Engineer William Fitzgerald, P.E. summarized his report. He recommended 

that the Board approve a specific installation of the light source. He also suggested that 

the messaging could be problematic and that there needs to be controls in place for 

the designs.  

 

Dan J. Dougherty, PE from Dynamic Engineering referred to the exhibits marked 

A-5 and A-6 to show the location of the sign and vacant lot 3.01 where there will be 

landscaping.  

 

A LED module for a typical electronic billboard was marked into evidence A-7. A 

photo of the module will be submitted to be kept on file. Mr. Dougherty explained how 

the module works, explaining that they make up the entire area of the billboard. The 

LEDs are controlled by an electronic source and can create many variations of colors 

and intensities. It is a three color combination ‘RGB’ which is red, green and black. 

 

 Mr. D’Arminio said that the billboard will be shut off at night between midnight 

and sunrise. Vice Chairman Schepiga asked how the modules are monitored in the 

event that one stops working. Mr. D’Arminio said that there is a system that monitors the 

modules and that they are easily replaced.  

 

 Mr. Dougherty described the messages in order to address Mr. Fitzgerald’s 

concerns about controlling the designs. He said that the image is static for 8 seconds as 

required by the NJDOT permit and then changes instantaneously to a new image. 

There will ne no animation or scrolling, which are also NJDOT requirements. Mr. 

Dougherty went through Mr. Fitzgerald’s reports, addressing outstanding concerns and 

going through the variances. They discussed illumination and ambient light. Mr. 

D’Arminio said that the brightness levels change during the day and are lower at night. 

Mr. Dougherty said that the sign goes dark or dim if there is a failure in one of the 

modules.  

 

 Craig Brinster, Vice President of Real Estate of CBS in the North East region was 

sworn in. Mr. Brinster explained that the sign has an overriding clock to ensure that the 

sign won’t become brighter when a headlight hits it. Mr. Brinster submitted the list of DOT 

permits which was marked into evidence A-8. The list is from June 2013 and their permit 

is App#70635 on page 231 of 239. A letter from the FBI dated October 15, 2012 thanking 

CBS for the use of the digital boards in tracking down wanted criminals was marked into 

evidence A-9. A thank you letter from the Drug Enforcement Agency dated February 

13, 2012 was marked into evidence A-10. A thank you letter from the Lakewood and 

Fairfield police departments for helping them catch the perpetrator of a shooting of a 

police officer was marked into evidence A-11.  

 

 Mr. Brinster explained the emergency alert system. He said that the individual 

agency creates the message and it is sent to the CBS office in Spokane, WA. Mr. Brinster 

said that the local municipalities can use the board for emergencies. The emergency 

would first have to be verified in order to display the message on the board. The police 

department would call and would develop a copy in conjunction with the CBS office. 

Mr. D’Arminio said that there would be designated people to make the call. Mr. 

Fitzgerald said that he wants this process to be formalized. Mr. D’Arminio said that there 

will be a written protocol. With regard to local events and public services, Mr. Brinster 

said that those can be used during unsold time on the Board.  

 

 Mr. Brinster said that CBS chooses the highest quality LEDs for clear images so that 

advertisers choose to use them. He said that the industry standard is 20 mm between 

LED modules. The life span of a module is 10 years. He explained that the smaller the  

 



Board of Adjustment                                                                                                         Page 5 

Township of Ocean                                                                                             March 13, 2014 

 

board, the more important it is to be heavily pixilated. Mr. D’Arminio said that they will 

provide the specs. 

  

 Mr. Fitzgerald said that his concern is that the approvals stay with the site and that 

another company may buy it from CBS. Mr. Brinster said that CBS upholds the highest 

standards. He described the review process for the images. He said that jpegs are 

reviewed and get sent back if there are any discrepancies. They review for spacing 

and legibility. He said that CBS does not want to display bad images because people 

disregard them, particularly if they are blurry or upside down.  

 

 Mr. Schepiga asked about the percentage of national and local advertising. Mr. 

Brinster said that it varies from month to month and from year to year and depends on 

the location of the sign. Mr. Brinster explained that they self-police more than what is 

required by the Outdoor Advertising Association of America.  He said that they would 

not accept an ad that would be offensive. Mr. D’Arminio said that they will provide a 

set of standards. Mr. Fitzgerald asked about the municipal response should a sign be 

distracting. Mr. Brinster said that the police department can contact the office should 

there be any issues and it will be reviewed. He agreed that there will be no interaction 

possible, such as no QR codes which people can scan with the cell phones to get more 

information.  

 

 Mr. Higgins asked about if there will be a limit to the number of messages. Mr. 

Brinster said that there is a limit of 8 messages which is the national standard. The 8 

messages will be cycled for a four week period. He explained that it is possible for the 

message to change throughout the day but most advertisers do not want to pay the 

extra rates. Using McDonald’s as an example, he said that they could change their 

message to advertise for breakfast, lunch and dinner.  

 

 Mr. Schepiga carried this application to April 10, 2014. 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 10:05 P.M.  

 Rachel Goncharko 

 Board Secretary 

 Recording Secretary 

 


